Public Document Pack

Local Plans Sub (Planning and Transportation)

Committee

Date:
Time:
Venue:

Members:

Enquiries:

TUESDAY, 5 JUNE 2018
10.30 am
COMMITTEE ROOMS - 2NP FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Christopher Hayward (Chairman)

Deputy Alastair Moss (Deputy Chairman)
Randall Anderson

Mark Bostock

Deputy Keith Bottomley

Marianne Fredericks

Alderman Gregory Jones QC

Dhruv Patel (ex-officio)

Amanda Thompson
amanda.thompson@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in Guildhall Club at 12.30PM

NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive




AGENDA

APOLOGIES

MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 May 2018.

For Decision
(Pages 1 -4)

CITY OF LONDON LOCAL PLAN REVIEW: PROPOSED DRAFT POLICIES
Report of the Director of the Built Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 5 - 14)

QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT



Agenda Iltem 3

LOCAL PLANS SUB (PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION) COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 9 May 2018

Minutes of the meeting of the Local Plans Sub (Planning and Transportation)
Committee held at the Guildhall EC2 at 10.00 am

Present

Members:

Christopher Hayward Deputy Keith Bottomley
Randall Anderson Marianne Fredericks

Mark Bostock Dhruv Patel

Officers:

Amanda Thompson - Town Clerk's Department

Paul Beckett - Department of the Built Environment
Eddie Jackson - Department of the Built Environment
Bruce Mcvean - Department of the Built Environment
Adrian Roche - Department of the Built Environment
lain Simmons - Department of the Built Environment

The Chairman welcomed Mark Bostock and Keith Bottomley to the Sub-
Committee, and expressed his thanks to former members Paul Martinelli and
Susan Pearson for their contribution to the work of the Sub-Committee.

1.  APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Deputy Alistair Moss and Alderman
Gregory Jones.

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
Dhruv Patel declared an interest in Agenda item 4 relating to Short Term
Residential Lettings by virtue of owning a block of serviced apartments. He
advised that he would make no comments during discussion on this issue.

3. MINUTES
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 February be
approved as a correct record

4. CITY OF LONDON LOCAL PLAN REVIEW: PROPOSED DRAFT POLICIES
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of the Built Environment
which sought comments on the proposed draft policies for the new Local Plan
in relation to Housing and Safe and Secure City.

Members made suggestions as follows:

Housing

Page 1



e A flexible approach to ‘intermediate’ housing should be adopted where
possible.

e Reference to provision for ‘key workers’ to be included.

e Reference to provision of adaptable housing for people with disabilities
to be included.

¢ Viability studies need to be more transparent and available to the public.

e Reference to both residential/mixed development rather than residential
only.

e Undertake a review of the ‘clusters’ in relation to the location of new
houses.

e Insist on top quality housing in line with our standards for offices

Safe and Secure City

e Collective approach to security is better than an individual approach and
measures to enhance this when planning large developments and new
buildings will be welcomed.

e Design of security measures should enhance and not adversely impact
the public realm.

e Early engagement with the COL Police is essential.

RESOLVED - To agree the proposed draft policies in relation to Housing and
Safe and Secure City.

TRANSPORT STRATEGY - PHASE ONE ENGAGEMENT REPORT

The Sub-Committee received a report detailing the activities undertaken during
the first phrase of the Transport Strategy engagement, together with the key
themes emerging from this engagement.

Members noted that the first phase of engagement had achieved a good level of
public and other stakeholder engagement and reach, and this had provided a good
understanding of the concerns and priorities which would inform the development
of the Transport Strategy.

The feedback from the participants in the different engagement activities had been
consistent, suggesting workers and residents shared concerns and priorities with
City businesses and other interested bodies.

Page 2



Further engagement would take place in June and July 2018, with consultation on
the proposed vision, aims and outcomes, and would include a second meeting of
the Citizens Panel.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

6. TRANSPORT STRATEGY - VISION, AIMS AND OUTCOMES
The Sub-Committee received a report outlining the draft vision, aims and
outcomes for the Transport Strategy including detailed proposals for achieving
each
outcome as well as targets and key performance indicators (KPIs) linked to the
outcomes.

Members considered that the draft vision was currently too long at three
paragraphs and it was agreed that just the following wording be used:

‘The Square Mile enjoys world-class connections and streets that inspire an d
delight’

RESOLVED - To approve the draft vision, aims and outcomes for the
Transport Strategy.

7. QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no items of urgent business.

The meeting closed at 11.45 am

Chairman

Contact Officer: Amanda Thompson
amanda.thompson@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Committee(s) Dated:

Local Plans Sub (Planning and Transportation) 05/06/2018
Committee
Subject: Public
City of London Local Plan Review: Proposed draft
policies

Report of: For Decision
Carolyn Dwyer, Director of the Built Environment
Report author:

Adrian Roche, Department of the Built Environment

Summary

At previous meetings of this Sub-Committee, Members have considered emerging
draft policies for the new Local Plan. Members made several comments and
suggestions, which will inform the final version of the draft Plan that is presented to
this Sub-Committee and to the Grand Committee. One further set of draft policies,
relating to Open Spaces and Green Infrastructure, is attached to this report.

Recommendations

Members are recommended to:

e Agree the proposed draft policies set out at Appendix 1 of this report.
Main Report
Background

1. At the meetings of this Sub-Committee on 22" September 2017 and 6t
October 2017, Members agreed the broad structure of the draft Local Plan
and considered policy directions for key policy areas. Officers are currently
preparing draft policies, informed by the steer from Members and a range of
other factors such as national policy, the London Plan, the evidence base and
the outcome of the Issues and Options consultation.

2. Eight sets of policies have so far been considered at previous meetings of this
Sub-Committee, namely Culture, Visitors and the Night-Time Economy;
Circular Economy and Waste; Smart Infrastructure and Ultilities; Climate
Resilience and Flood Risk; Historic Environment; Healthy and Inclusive City;
Housing; and Safe and Secure City.

3. Members made various comments and suggestions, which will be reflected in

the amended versions of those policies when the full draft Local Plan is
reported to this Sub-Committee and to the Grand Committee in autumn 2018.

Page 5



Draft policies

4.

The following section of the Local Plan has now been drafted and is attached
as Appendix 1 of this report:

e Open Spaces and Green Infrastructure

Members should note that the Local Plan is not being drafted in the order that
policies will appear in the final version, other than the City-wide policies which
are being prepared ahead of the area-specific policies.

Members are asked to consider the proposed policy wording and to advise of
any additions, deletions or other amendments that should be made before the
relevant policies are presented to the Grand Committee.

The Sub-Committee previously indicated that it wished to consider the
detailed wording of all the policies in the draft Local Plan but not the
supporting text. Members are therefore asked to focus comments on the
wording in the policy boxes. However, the supporting text is also presented to
help explain the reasoning behind the proposed policies, and may assist with
understanding the terminology used in some of the draft policies.

Next steps

8.

Officers are in the process of drafting further sections of the draft Local Plan,
which will be presented to the Sub-Committee at meetings in June and July. It
is intended to bring the full Plan back to the Sub-Committee for approval
before it is reported to the Grand Committee in the autumn so that it can be
published for public consultation alongside the draft Transport Strategy in
November 2018.

Corporate and Strategic Implications

9. The review of the Local Plan is being informed by the emerging draft
Corporate Plan and will provide an opportunity to complement key corporate
objectives, such as developing Culture Mile and progressing the Future City
agenda.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — draft policies on Open Spaces and Green Infrastructure

Adrian Roche
Development Plans Team Leader

T:020 7332 1846
E: adrian.roche@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 6



Appendix 1 — draft policies on Open Spaces and Green Infrastructure
Context

The City of London is a busy urban environment containing many small open
spaces and pocket parks. These spaces are vital to the success of the City,
offering residents, workers and visitors outside spaces in which to work or to
relax and appreciate the streetscape. There is a growing recognition that
green infrastructure also helps to mitigate against some effects of climate
change, provides benefits for well-being and mental health and improves air
quality. These same small green spaces are essential for wildlife found in this
urban setting. The policy seeks to encourage further green infrastructure,
open space provision and biodiversity within the City.

Policy CS XX: Open Spaces and Green Infrastructure
The City of London Corporation will work in partnership with developers,
landowners and other agencies to promote a greener City by:

. Protecting existing open and green space;

. Increasing public access to existing and new open spaces;

. Creating, maintaining and encouraging high quality green
infrastructure;

. Using planting and habitat creation to enhance biodiversity and combat
the impacts of climate change;

. Promoting the greening of the City through new development
opportunities and refurbishments;

. Ensuring new development and refurbishment protect and enhance the

City’s biodiversity.

Reason for the policy

The City is densely built up and most of its open space provision consists of
small spaces at street level. Green infrastructure in the City includes civic
spaces, parks and gardens, cemeteries and churchyards, and green roofs &
walls in addition to amenity spaces. A key environmental asset is the River
Thames.

Open and green space is under increasing pressure due to the intensification
of development, an expanding workforce and growing visitor numbers
projected over the next twenty years.

The City of London Corporation is committed to protecting existing open
spaces and expanding the provision of green infrastructure as far as possible
consistent with heritage significance. The City Corporation wishes to see
further urban greening to make the Square Mile more attractive to workers,
residents and visitors. This would contribute to the Mayor of London’s
ambition to make over 50 per cent of London green by 2050.

Given that space is at a premium in the City, all new developments and
refurbishments will be required to include a greening element to the building

Page 7



and/or the public realm where consistent with good design. This approach will
have many benefits over time such as improving the urban environment for
biodiversity, reducing rainwater run-off, improving insulation, reducing air and
noise pollution, regulating temperature, and improving visual amenity. Public
access to greening elements should be achieved wherever possible.

How the policy works

The City of London Corporation will work with developers and landowners at
all stages of the development process and actively monitor developments
from pre-application stage through to post completion to ensure that the
highest standards of green infrastructure are achieved, and existing provision
is improved.

Open Spaces

Policy DM X.X: Protection and provision of open spaces
The quantity, quality and accessibility of public open space will be
maintained and improved.

e Existing open space will be protected, particularly that of historic
interest. Where a loss of existing open space is proposed, it will be
replaced on redevelopment by open space of equal or improved
quantity and quality on or near the site;

e Additional publicly accessible open space and pedestrian routes
will be sought in major commercial and residential developments
wherever practical but particularly in areas of open space
deficiency;

o Further civic spaces will be created from underused highways and
other land;

e Public access will be secured, wherever possible, to existing
private spaces;

e Access to new and existing open spaces will be improved;

Open spaces must be designed to meet the needs of all the City’s
communities.

Reason for the policy

The City of London has approximately 376 open spaces totalling 32 hectares
which includes parks, gardens, churchyards and hard open spaces such as
plazas and improvements to the highway. Most of the open spaces are small,
with approximately 80% of sites less than 0.2 hectares in size and only 11%
over half a hectare.

Many open spaces in the City are of historic value, such as churchyards,
while others are of more recent origin. New or improved spaces are created
through a programme of public realm enhancements undertaken by the City
of London Corporation and others. These new spaces may be public highway
land or private space around buildings. They offer the opportunity to create

Page 8



areas which meet a range of needs. There is a need for additional open space
in the City to provide facilities for the growing daytime population, to help
reduce the effects of pollution and climate change, to provide facilities for

relaxation, tranquillity, agile working, leisure and sport, and to increase
biodiversity.

The provision of open space across the City is uneven. The northern area of
the City contains just over half of all the open space in the City, due to the
relatively large amounts of space in the Barbican and Golden Lane estates
and the Broadgate commercial estate. There is significant open space along
the Thames and the riverside, with the Riverside Walk, the Temples legal
precinct and space close to the Tower of London. A new public open space
will be created at Blackfriars foreshore as a result of the Thames Tideway
Tunnel project. Although open space provision in the Aldgate area has been
significantly enhanced with the opening of Aldgate Square, this area and the
Eastern Cluster areas have the lowest percentages of open space and face

pressure from the increasing employment numbers associated with
commercial intensification.

There is intense pressure on all the City’s open spaces particularly at
lunchtimes and new development provides an opportunity to create additional

open space, which should be designed for multiple uses and resilient to future
climate conditions.

S
Lo

Qo
v
¢“§
3
ACE
o
o9
o
- E
Paul: Stre,
N Road
=
WA
|
=)
3
£

A0y,
o
Ve

%
2,
n

08

N\ 4V

@
o
P
3
k
7
5
L
w
5

Clerkenwell

TR
iiRoad
; -L\e(\,\eﬂwhll RO 2&\
g =)
A=y

| ¥
\ :
| ) X
~ 1 ‘\; ; i\ :
Moy
City:Road
e
.
= e
w
H
2
1
|
\
Brickilaneals.L

Farringdon

] T
=
G\,{; ‘\\Q?‘q_ a Spital .'ielc.ls 2
1 = i S e ! ec .
\ ! 7 9
=4 | ) mtzg\ 4 Moorgate
Chancery s o 1 , 3
N \ ondon
= | 8 e -;1 57 R’ ‘gr
Loll (PO ) Ep ey N CE? &g 6’; .\ ,
|| '.37. T, BT L & Q{g‘ ,E =y \*
% = Ay 2 : 5 g
2 I L et q = ) ' @ 5 b & g v
1 % & a s b CITY OF S v 41( Aldgate East
SRR § s 2=l @ g
[ = 2
A e BRI _-'qr %pNDON s ga X
San L denh, o
= e E-q« Thamesin U Sl Qo cor = q ”' Street
ﬁ% | b [ B r & i \
o =Bl I EEE;- 5&’ . = W u P ;3% S ‘
ROQUBER:Victoria K, LY Lot | |
- .6 | [ I = Elslon Hous’E B L} & /o ﬁg L n._' ] ’,t} —
gy — = e e E A ket Eﬁé ia == 'TJ'ape, ﬁv ‘E’ e L = o ——=
oTemple 2 Mg, gh I“Iomgm: o ; .r Ga y
L ﬁ; /
H % 8"5'fs,wm"ne“'
i = Whitechapel
£ 7 5
sz, | £ m
cxiee B S\ o _ \ !
ok © % . 3 AN =
RO N RSt ===y,

Map X Open Spaces in the C|ty of London

Page 9



Policy DM X.X: City Greening
The provision of urban greening should be integral to the design and layout
of buildings and the public realm.

o All development proposals will be required to demonstrate the
highest feasible levels of greening consistent with good design and
the local context

¢ The installation of biodiverse extensive or intensive green roofs,
terraces and green walls will be encouraged

Major development proposals will be required to:
e Demonstrate an Urban Greening Factor (UGF) of 0.3 as a minimum
e Submit an operation and maintenance plan to demonstrate that the
green features will remain successful throughout the life of the
building.

Reason for the policy

Urban greening provides a wide range of benefits for air quality, noise, urban
heat island effect, rainwater run-off, biodiversity enhancement, recreation, and
health and wellbeing of the City’s communities. This will increase in
importance as weather patterns continue to change with rising average
temperatures, summer droughts and more intense rainfall events periodically
through the year. Evidence demonstrates a positive correlation between
urban greening and good mental and physical health'. However, the provision
of large green spaces in the City’s high density urban environment is difficult
to achieve. Small areas of soft landscaping, green walls and green roofs,
associated with buildings and the public realm, will therefore play a vital role in
promoting wellbeing. Increased access to green spaces will be encouraged.

The City of London Corporation has long championed green roofs and
continues to actively encourage them, but other forms of greening are less
common in and around new buildings. The provision of trees and landscaping,
and vertical greening such as green walls is also encouraged. Green walls
bring many of the same benefits to the environment as green roofs and can
improve the appearance of locations where there is limited opportunity for
horizontal planting. To be successful they require careful design and
installation and regular maintenance.

Green roofs should be designed, installed and maintained appropriately and
can be designed as sustainable or ecological features, and recreational
spaces. To ensure that the maximum practicable coverage of green roof and
terraces can be achieved, location-appropriate plants should be installed on
sloping roofs, between cradle tracks and underneath solar panel installations.

1 hitp://www.euro.who.int/ _data/assets/pdf file/0005/321971/Urban-green-spaces-and-health-review-
evidence.pdf2ua=1

Page 10


http://www.euro.who.int/__data/assets/pdf_file/0005/321971/Urban-green-spaces-and-health-review-evidence.pdf?ua=1
http://www.euro.who.int/__data/assets/pdf_file/0005/321971/Urban-green-spaces-and-health-review-evidence.pdf?ua=1

There are two main types of green roofs, intensive green roofs which can be
used as recreational spaces with similar features to parks and gardens, and
extensive ones having plants such as sedums and wildflowers but with limited
or no access for people. Varying extensive green roof substrate levels will be
encouraged to improve rainwater retention and enhance biodiversity, using a
high proportion of native plants. Where developers prefer to install intensive
green roofs with deep substrates for amenity space, these are expected to be
of high quality design incorporating rainwater harvesting for irrigation to
minimise water use.

The green roof should not impact adversely on protected views and planting
should be appropriate to the location and height of the roof. All green roofs
should be designed, installed and maintained appropriately to maximise the
roof’'s environmental benefits including biodiversity, rain water run-off
attenuation and building insulation.

How the policy works

This policy provides a mechanism for ensuring a consistent approach to
greening for all new buildings and public realm schemes. It takes account of
the value of different types of greening through the application of an Urban
Greening Factor (UGF), with a higher UGF for greening that provides multiple
benefits.

The Draft London Plan (2017) has introduced a UGF scoring system for
London, which is intended to operate as a planning policy tool to assess the
amount, type and value of greenery within development proposals. It
recommends interim target scores, pending work by individual boroughs to
develop their own approaches tailored to local circumstances.

The City of London Corporation has commissioned a UGF Study to assess
the level of urban greening which can be delivered successfully in new
development. This indicates that an UGF target of 0.3 should be adopted
within the Local Plan. Policy DM XX therefore requires all development
proposals in the City to demonstrate a minimum UGF target of 0.3.
Residential developments will be expected to attain the same UGF score as
commercial developments as they are likely to be of a similar high-density
form.

Developers will need to provide evidence to justify why the UGF target cannot
be met. The City Corporation will take a flexible approach to developments
with listed building or conservation area considerations if achieving the UGF
target would detract from their heritage significance.

Development proposals could include greening of roofs, facades, terraces and
balconies, both internal and external, and/or landscaping around the building
depending on the circumstances of each site. The UGF assessment should
be included in the Design and Access Statement. An operation and
maintenance plan should be submitted as part of the planning application to
show how the greenery will be maintained and will be secured through

Page 11



condition. This will ensure that suitable green elements are designed in and
will remain attractive and viable throughout the life of the development.

More details including a worked example of a UGF calculation are set out in
Appendix X of the Local Plan.

Biodiversity

Policy DM X.X: Biodiversity
Development should incorporate measures to enhance biodiversity, which
may include all or some of the following:

¢ Retention and enhancement of habitats within Sites of Importance
for Nature Conservation (SINCs), including the River Thames;

e Measures recommended in the City of London Habitat Action Plan
and the City of London Biodiversity Action Plan in relation to
particular species or habitats;

e Green roofs and walls, gardens and terraces, soft landscaping and
trees;

e Green corridors and biodiversity links;

Wildlife-friendly features, such as nesting or roosting boxes and
insect hotels;

e A planting mix and variation in vegetation types which encourages
biodiversity;

¢ Planting which will be resilient to a range of climate conditions, with
a high proportion of native plants.

Reason for the policy

Protecting and improving biodiversity involves enhancing wildlife populations
and their habitats. This has associated positive impacts to the environment,
economic and social life of the City and the aesthetics of the streetscape.
Healthy biodiversity can be viewed as a sign of a healthy environment and
healthy city.

Measures to enhance biodiversity should address the need to provide habitats
that benefit the City’s flagship species (house sparrows, peregrine falcons,
swifts, black redstarts, bats, bumblebees and stag beetles) and by extension
a wider range of insects and birds.

New developments should seek to protect and enhance biodiversity and the
City’s environmental assets. This can be achieved by providing spaces for
biodiversity to flourish through the planting of trees and soft landscaping,
along with green roofs and walls where possible. A variety of these provisions
in one development will create habitats for a range of different wildlife species.
Joined up green spaces and corridors give species a better chance of survival
in the urban landscape and greater resilience to future climate change. These
measures will assist in the delivery of the London wide Green Grid.

Page 12



The City has 13 Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs),
including four new SINCs (Postman’s Park, Portsoken Street Garden, St
Dunstan in the East Church Garden) which were designated following a
review in 2016. However, certain areas along the riverside, west of Farringdon
Street and east of Bishopsgate have been identified as areas of deficiency in
nature conservation by the GLA. It is important that opportunities are taken to
improve biodiversity throughout the City, and particularly in areas where this
would improve green corridors or biodiversity links, such as along the
riverside. The River Thames, which is a Site of Metropolitan Importance for
Nature Conservation (SMINC), brings wider benefits for migrating birds and
fish species.

Sites of Metropolitan Importance
for Nature Conservation

m Sites of Borough Importance
for Nature Conservation

B3 Sites of Local Importance L5
for Nature Conservation G =

.................

Map X: Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs)

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 City of London Local Plan Review: Proposed draft policies
	Appendix 1 - Open Spaces and Green Infrastructure


